
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL LAND USE BOARD MINUTES 
BOROUGH OF EMERSON 

June 18 , 2020 
 

 
 
This virtual meeting of the Emerson Land Use Board was held on “Gotomeeting.”   Land Use 
Vice Chairman Schwinder opened the meeting at 7:32pm.  In compliance with the Open Public 
Meeting Act, the Clerk has notified The Record and The Ridgewood News of this meeting and 
notice has been posted in the Municipal Building. 
 
 
 
Roll call was taken: 
          Mayor DiPaola     Absent 
  Stephanie Clark     Present 
               Councilwoman Jill McGuire     Absent 

  Chairman Jeff Bischoff       Absent 
  Vice-Chairman Gary Schwinder     Present 
  Don Pierro     Present 

  Mike Myers     Present 
  Bill Loschiavo     Present 
  Paul Hulburt     Present 
  Michael Timmerman     Present 
  Mike Cimino     Absent 
  Andy Sarkisian     Absent 
  Carl Carbo     Absent 
  Christopher Martin, LUB Attorney     Present   
  Caroline Reiter, Planner     Not Requested   
  David Atkinson, LUB Engineer     Not Requested 
  Richard, Silvia, CCO/Zoning     Not Requested 
  Perry Solimando, DPW Interim Super.   Not Requested 
  Borough Administrator, Richard Hermansen  Not Requested 
  Marie Shust, Secretary     Present 

 
 
Before asking for a motion to accept the minutes, Vice Chairman Schwinder stated that the 
CFO’s  name was incorrectly spelled.  He asked if there were any other comments/corrections.  
Hearing none he asked for a motion to approve the amended minutes, which was made by Mr. 
Timmerman.  Second was offered by Vice Chairman Schwinder.  Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman 
Schwinder, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers, Mr. Pierro, Mr. Timmerman all voted to approve the 
amended minutes.   Mr. Hulburt abstained as he had not been present at that meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
Correspondence, Vouchers: 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked for the vouchers to be read.  Since the Mayor and 
Councilwoman were not present, the vouchers were not separated. 

     

     
Vouchers June 18, 2020   

11-Jun 20-00778 Neglia Engineering Emerson Station  $1,812.00  

16-Jun 20-00801 Morrison Mahone Emerson Redevelopment  $   236.50  

     

11-Jun 20-00778 Neglia Engineering 178 Colonial Rd., Zozzaro 
Res 

 $   198.00  

16-Jun 20-00801 Morrison Mahoney Trinity Rehab,  Use Var  $   193.50  

16-Jun 20-00801 Morrison Mahoney 3 Crest Rd, Rice Res.  $   279.50  

17-Jun 20-00808 Morrison Mahoney General Matters  $   623.64  

4-Jun 20-00733 WB Mason Supplies  ink for printer  $     59.22  

   
 

  
$ 3,402.36 

        

Vice Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any comments or changes in regard to the 
vouchers.  Hearing none, he asked for a motion to approve them for payment, which was made 
by Mr. Pierro, second was offered by Mr. Hulburt.   Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman Schwinder, Mr. 
Loschiavo, Mr. Myers, Mr. Pierro, Mr. Timmerman and Mr. Hulburt all voted to approve the 
vouchers. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked all in attendance to please mute their microphones until it was 
their turn to speak, thus eliminating any background noises.  He continued that at the 
suggestion of Ms. Shust, the agenda would be revised to hear the application of the Karathomas 
family before going into all of the Resolutions. 
 
APPLICATION; Karathomas Residence, 
   132 Hasbrouck Ave,    Block 407, Lot 6,  fence height variance 
 
Nick and Ailza Karathomas introduced themselves and gave their address as 132 Hasbrouck Ave.  
Mr. Martin confirmed that their notices were satisfactory. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked the applicants to explain the what, where and why of their 
application. 
 
Ailza told the Board that their son is autistic and is 3 1/2 feet tall.  And, since she and her husband 
felt their son could easily scale a 3 foot tall fence, they would like to install a 5 ft tall fence along 
the Lozier Street side of their corner property to prevent him from walking off their backyard 
property, and have it terminate at the northeast front corner of their house.  
 
There is currently no fence along the Lozier Street side of their property. The same fencing will 
be installed on the southeast front corner of their house and terminate at their southern neighbor’s 
fence.    



3 
 

Vice Chairman Schwinder asked about the rear of the yard.   Ailza replied there is a retaining wall 
there.  At one time there was a fence, but a storm took it down.   She continued that they were 
not planning on replacing that fence, as there were bushes there that their son doesn’t like to 
touch.   
 
Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any pets, and received a no reply.   Mr. Martin asked for 
confirmation on the fence location, which is along Lozier and connecting to the front of the house, 
not beyond the front of the house.   Mr. Karathomas confirmed the location and stated it would be 
a white vinyl fence to be installed by Wayside Fencing. 
 
Mr. Martin asked the applicants to have the installer provide a detailed drawing showing the full 
dimensions of the location and length of the fencing.  Mr. Martin asked if this fencing was similar 
to other fencing in the neighborhood.   He was told there were some wooden fences on the street, 
and there would be no detriment to the neighborhood 
 
Mr. Martin advised the applicants that if the application was approved, they would have to conform 
to recommendations, if any, of the Borough Engineer and the Police regarding the site line.  Mr. 
Karathomas said there was no need for setback variances as the fence would be located 10 – 15 
feet from Lozier and the home is situated 55 feet back from Hasbrouck Ave. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder confirmed that the Board requires a detailed drawing of location and 
length, which should also be provided to the Police Dept for approval. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked the Board if there were any questions in regard to this 
application.   Mr. Pierro stated that there were several other homes in the neighborhood with 
fences, and the fencing proposed would be consistent. 
 
Ms. Clark suggested, that having gone through this, that rear area be added to this application so 
there would be no need to return at a later date, if they should change their minds. 
 
Vice Chairman confirmed they would add into the resolution the connection between the side and 
the north boundaries to prevent future problems.  Mr. Martin asked for confirmation that there 
could be a fence added to run across the rear of the property at a future date.  Mr. Timmerman 
wanted to be sure the possible rear fence would meet the rear yard setback. 
 
Ms. Clark stated that she had had a problem with her corner property, and finally had to install the 
side yard fence to the house diagonally.   She invited the Karathomas family to drive by her home 
to view the fence installation.   She asked the Board if the Police review requirement could be 
added as a pre-Board meeting, rather than an afterthought. 
 
Mr. Pierro agreed it was a good point and should be added.    Ms. Clark stated is should be a part 
of the checklist.  Mr. Loschiavo added it is important to get Police input on these applications to 
be sure they do not impinge on setbacks. 
 
Mr. Martin confirmed that should be part of the application process.    Ms. Shust was instructed to 
include that information in the application packet. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked for a motion to open the floor to the public on this matter only, 
which was made by Ms. Clark, second by Mr.  Pierro, all were in favor. Since there was no public, 
Mr. Loschiavo made a motion to close the floor to the public. Second by Mr. Hulburt, all were in 



4 
 

favor. 
 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked for a motion on this application.  Mr. Loschiavo made a motion 
that the application be approved with the stipulations made during the presentation, second was 
made by Mr. Hulburt.  Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman Schwinder, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers, Mr. 
Hulburt, Mr. Pierro, and Mr. Timmerman all were in favor. 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Karathomas were told the Resolution for their application would be available at the 
meeting of July 9th, after which they could apply to the Building Dept for their building permit and 
the construction of the fence. 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
 

Monchino Residence,  3 Douglas St,   Block   223   Lot  6 
 Fence application 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any comments on the Resolution for the 
Monchino fence Resolution,  Since there were none, he asked for a motion.  Mr. Loschiavo 
made a motion to approve the Resolution, second was offered by Mr. Timmerman. 
 
Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman Schwinder, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers,  Mr. Pierro, and Mr. Timmerman 
were in favor. 
 
 
 Shah Residence,  80 Karen,      Block  901    Lot  1 
 Fence application 
 
Vie Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any comments on the Resolution for the Shah 
fence Resolution.  Hearing none he asked for a motion.   Mr. Pierro made a motion to approve 
the Resolution, second was offered by Ms. Clark.   
 
Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman Schwinder, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers,  Mr. Pierro, and Mr. Timmerman  
were in favor. 
 

Fringuello Residence 15 Orchard      Block  219  Lot  2 
 Addition, pre-existing set back variance 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any comments on the Fringuello Resolution for 
the addition to replace the sundeck on a pre-existing lot variance.   Hearing no comments, he 
asked for a motion.  Mr.  Loschiavo made a motion to approve the Resolution, second was 
offered by Mr. Myers. 
 
Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman Schwinder, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers,  Mr. Pierro, and Mr. 
Timmerman were in favor 
 
 Trinity Rehab, 444 Kinderkamack Rd,    Block 211, Lot 
      Pascack Valley Shopping Center 
 Use Variance 
 



5 
 

Vice Chairman Schwinder asked if there were any comments on this application.  Hearing none, 
he asked for a motion.   Mr. Pierro made a motion to approved the Resolution, second was 
offered by Mr. Loschiavo. 
 
Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman Schwinder, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers,  Mr. Pierro, and Mr. Timmerman 
were in favor. 
 
 Yocheved’s Gift Shop   DISMISSAL OF APPLICATION 
 9A Ackerman Ave Block 606, Lot 2 
 Use Variance 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder asked Mr. Martin for clarification on Page 6, 2nd paragraph in regard 
to tenancy.    The Vice Chair did not think the Gift Shop was a tenant as yet.    Mr. Martin replied 
that the applicant has already signed the Lease for the subject location and therefore is a 
tenant. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder then asked the Board members if there was any comment on the 
Resolution.  Mr. Loschiavo made a motion and stressed that if the applicant reapplied the 
Escrow due would be paid, and they would have to provide notice to all neighbors.  Second was 
made by Mr. Pierro.   
 
Ms. Clark, Vice Chairman Schwinder, Mr. Loschiavo, Mr. Myers,  Mr. Pierro, and Mr. Timmerman 
were in favor. 
 

Master Plan:    
Amendments to Master Plan involving Non-Residential Zones permitted uses. 

 
Vice Chairman Schwinder stated that the Amendment did not specify all of the possible uses 
that were recommended at the previous meeting, including billiards and shipping stores.  Nor 
was the designation of “hotel” changed in regard to pets.  The Vice Chair said these were 
important modifications and should be included.   Mr. Martin stated the adoption of the Planner’s 
report was good as it endorses the idea of new uses.   The Governing Body can also make 
recommendations and return to the Board. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder said sending an incomplete report to the Governing Body leaves 
many businesses in a position where they would have to apply for a variance. 
 
Mr. Pierro agreed that the purpose of these recommendations was to eliminate as many use 
variances as possible.   By omitting certain business ventures the Board is not achieving its 
goal. 
 
Mr. Martin stated the Report covers some of the recommended businesses, but not all. 
 
The Vice Chairman said he would like to discuss the report with Ms. Reiter before asking the 
Board to approve it.      Mr. Pierro agreed, the report should be clearer.  In some places it is 
vague. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder said the document should be more specific and eliminate any guess 
work.   Mr. Loschiavo stated he agreed with the Vice Chairman. 
 



6 
 

 
Mr. Timmerman wanted to know if the Report would come back to the Land Use Board after 
review by the Governing Body.  Mr. Martin said the Master Plan is under the control of the Land 
Use Board   And if the Board would like to have some items changed/included before 
recommending to the Governing Body, they would have to table the Resolution until the next 
meeting,  The Resolution would remain the same, the accompanying documentation would 
change. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder stated he would like to see the report be more specific.  He referred 
to Mr. Pierro and Mr. Myers who worked on the recommendations with Ms. Reiter for their 
thoughts.   Mr. Pierro agreed that the documentation should be more specific.  He stressed that 
the purpose of these changes was to eliminate unnecessary applications.  He said the more 
specific, the better.   Mr. Myers said he was okay with the testimony of the Planner but if the 
Board would prefer a more specific report, that is okay with him as well. 
 
Vice Chairman Schwinder stated he was tabling the Resolution to the next meeting and he 
would be in contact with Ms. Reiter in regard to specific items on pages 6 & 7. 
 
 

BOARD BUSINESS: 
 
 Amendment  to Ordinance 248, Curbs & Sidewalks 
 
Mr. Martin stated there was no action to be taken by the Board, as this was an item that had 
come before the Board earlier in the year, but due to the Pandemic had not been forwarded to 
the Governing Body. 
 
 OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Mr.  Pierro made a motion to open the floor to the public, second was made by Mr. Timmerman, 
all were in favor.  Since there was no public, Mr. Loschiavo made a motion to close the floor, 
second by Mr. Hulburt, all were in favor. 
 
  

MEMBER DISCUSSION: 
 
Mr. Losciavo asked that paperwork be forwarded to the members in a timely manner.  He said 
that due to his work schedule receiving applications, Resolutions and other paperwork on short 
notice does not allow him to properly review them. 
 
Armenian Home 
Mr. Loschiavo asked for an update on the construction at the Armenian Home,  Vice Chairman 
Schwinder deferred to Mr  Martin. 
 
Mr. Martin told the Board that the matter was in the hands of the Borough Engineer.  He was 
waiting for a report as to the progress or lack of, and why. 
 
Mr. Martin wished all the gentlemen a Happy Father’s Day and a belated Happy Mother’s Day to 
the ladies. 
 



7 
 

Mr. Martin also stated that the Emerson Land Use Board was operating very effectively during 
this period.  His experience with other municipalities has not been as good. 
 
Ms. Clark asked about in person meetings, as she is the Chair of the EEC.   Mr. Martin replied it 
was the Chair’s decision, but that caution and social distancing as well as masks are required. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Since there was no other business to discuss the Vice Chair asked for a motion to adjourn the 
meeting, which was made by Ms. Clark,  second was offered by Mr. Pierro, all were in favor.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:50 pm. 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
M. Marie Shust 
Board Secretary 


